ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 13, 2010
2:42 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Al bert Kookesh, Chair
Senator Linda Menard, Vice Chair
Senator Bettye Davis

Senat or Kevin Meyer

Senat or Joe Paskvan

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
COW TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 357(FIN)
"An Act relating to the sale of Iland owned by the Al aska
Railroad that is not necessary for railroad purposes.”
- MOVED CSHB 357(FIN) OQUT OF COW TTEE
CS FOR HOUSE JO NT RESCLUTI ON NO. 42(JUD)
Proposi ng anmendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
creating a transportation infrastructure fund.
- MOVED SCS CSHIR 42(TRA) OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COWM TTEE ACTI ON

Bl LL: HB 357
SHORT TITLE: AK RAI LROAD CORP. LAND SALES
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) STOLTZE

02/ 19/ 10 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

02/ 19/ 10 (H) TRA

03/ 16/ 10 (H TRA AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 16/ 10 (H Heard & Held

03/ 16/ 10 (H) M NUTE( TRA)

03/ 23/ 10 (H TRA AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 23/ 10 (H Moved CSHB 357(TRA) Qut of Conmittee
03/ 23/ 10 (H) M NUTE( TRA)

03/ 24/ 10 (H TRA RPT CS(TRA) NT 5DP

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -1- April 13, 2010



03/ 24/ 10 (H DP: MUNQZ, T. W LSON, GRUENBERG,
PETERSEN, P. W LSON

03/ 24/ 10 (H) FI N REFERRAL ADDED AFTER TRA

04/ 01/ 10 (H FIN AT 1: 30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

04/ 01/ 10 (H Heard & Held

04/ 01/ 10 (H) M NUTE( FI N)

04/ 02/ 10 (H FIN AT 1: 30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

04/ 02/ 10 (H Moved CSHB 357(FIN) Qut of Conmittee

04/ 02/ 10 (H) M NUTE( FI N)

04/ 05/ 10 (H FIN RPT CS(FIN) NT 4DP 4NR

04/ 05/ 10 (H DP: THOVAS, AUSTERNVAN, FAI RCLOUGH,
STOLTZE

04/ 05/ 10 (H NR GARA, DOOGAN, KELLY, N.FOSTER

04/ 05/ 10 (H) LETTER OF | NTENT WTH FI N REPORT

04/ 07/ 10 (H TRANSM TTED TO (S)

04/ 07/ 10 (H VERSI ON:  CSHB 357(FIN)

04/ 08/ 10 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

04/ 08/ 10 (S) TRA, FIN

04/ 13/ 10 (S) TRA AT 1: 00 PM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: HIR 42

SHORT TI TLE: CONST. AM TRANSPORTATI ON FUND
SPONSCR(s) : TRANSPORTATI ON

02/ 05/ 10 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

02/ 05/ 10 (H TRA, JUD, FIN

02/ 09/ 10 (H TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 09/ 10 (H) Moved Qut of Conmttee

02/ 09/ 10 (H M NUTE( TRA)

02/ 10/ 10 (H) TRA RPT 6DP 1NR

02/ 10/ 10 (H) DP: JOHANSEN, MUNQZ, JOHNSON, T. W LSON,
PETERSEN, P. W LSON

02/ 10/ 10 (H) NR: GRUENBERG

02/ 17/ 10 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 17/ 10 (H Heard & Held

02/ 17/ 10 (H M NUTE( JUD)

02/ 22/ 10 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 22/ 10 (H -- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

03/ 01/ 10 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

03/ 01/ 10 (H Moved CSHIR 42(JUD) Qut of Committee

03/ 01/ 10 (H M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 04/ 10 (H) JUD RPT CS(JUD) 1DP 4NR

03/ 04/ 10 (H DP: LYNN

03/ 04/ 10 (H NR: GRUENBERG, HERRON, DAHLSTROM
RAVRAS

04/ 10/ 10 (H FIN AT 9: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

04/ 10/ 10 (H Moved CSHIR 42(JUD) Qut of Conmmittee

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 2- April 13, 2010



04/ 10/ 10 (H) M NUTE( FI N)

04/ 11/ 10 (H) FIN RPT CS(JUD) 3DP 7NR

04/ 11/ 10 (H DP: FAI RCLOUGH, AUSTERMAN, KELLY

04/ 11/ 10 (H) NR.  THOVAS, GARA, DOOGAN,  JOULE,
N. FOSTER, STOLTZE, HAWKER

04/ 12/ 10 (H TRANSM TTED TO (S)

04/ 12/ 10 (H) VERSI ON:  CSHIR 42( JUD)

04/ 13/ 10 (S) TRA AT 1: 00 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE BI LL STOLTZE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of HB 357.

VEENDY LI NDSKOOG, Vi ce President of Corporate Affairs

Al aska Railroad Corporation

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified that HB 357 highlighted concerns
that custoners have with ARRC, but that the nodel is worth
prot ecti ng.

JEFFREY DAVI ES, President

Aneri can Federation of Government Enpl oyees

Al aska Railroad Wrkers Local 183

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 357.

JOHN COCK, Board of Directors

Al aska Railroad Corporation

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Hi ghlighted potential problens associated
wth HB 357.

PETER MACKSEY, Custoner Rel ations

Steel fab

Anchor age, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 357.

CARL ANDERSON, Owner

Cook Inlet Tug and Barge

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 357.

MARK STEARNS

Al askan Wod Ml di ng

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 357.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 3- April 13, 2010



MARK HI CKEY, representing hinself
Juneau, AK
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in strong support of HIR 42.

SH RLEY MARQUARDT, Mayor

Cty of Unal aska and

2nd Vice President, Al aska Muinicipal |eague and

Board of Directors, Southwest Al aska Municipal Conference
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in strong support of HIR 42.

KATHY WASSERMAN, Executive Director
Al aska Muni ci pal League

Juneau, AK
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Provi ded supporting information to HIR 42.

LO S EPSTIEN, Director

Al aska Transportation Priorities Project and

Al aska Licensed Engi neer

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 42.

DAVI D LEVY, Executive Director
Al aska Mbility
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 42.

JOHN MACKI NNON, Executive Director
Associ ated General Contractors of Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 42.

DAVE CRUZ, President
Associ ated General Contractors of Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 42.

FRANK RI CHARDS, Deputy Comm ssi oner
Department of Transportation and Public Facilities (DOTPF)
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information related to HIR 42.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

2:42: 07 PM

CHAI R ALBERT KOOKESH called the Senate Transportation Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 2:42 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Meyer, Davis, and Kookesh. Senators Menard

and Paskvan arrived soon thereafter.

HB 357- AK RAI LROAD CORP. LAND SALES

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -4- April 13, 2010



CHAI R KOOKESH announced the consideration of HB 357. [CSHB
357(FIN) was before the committee.]

2:42:59 PM
REPRESENTATI VE BILL STOLTZ, sponsor of HB 357, presented the
bill speaking to the sponsor statenent:

To spur econom c devel opnent throughout the state,
House Bill 357 adds a fourth clause to the existing
| anguage governing how the Al aska Railroad Corporation
(ARRC) may dispose of |land. House Bill 357 will enable
the railroad to sell land that is not needed for
essential railroad purposes. This bill does not ask
for any irresponsible disposal of land, as the sale
must be initiated by the board of directors on two
conditions. The first condition is that the land is
not essential to railroad operations, and the second
condition is that the sale is in the best interest of
the state of Al aska.

As support has shown, current |easeholders are very
unhappy with the inability to purchase their |eased
properties from the railroad. In general real estate
dealings, private purchases are nmade in nutually
beneficial sales. House Bill 357 encourages these
sales after determ nation by the board of directors of
the railroad |ooks at each sale wth the overal
benefit to the state of Alaska as the key driver. Not
only wll the private sector benefit from this
addition to state law, the railroad will also have
increased ability to make decisions regarding their
overall real estate portfolio.

The sale and relationship of private and public |ands
are vital to the economic gromh of the state of
Al aska. | ask for your consideration and support of
House Bill 357 to pronpte Al askan growth through the
diversification of |and ownership, increasing the tax
base of the state, and encouraging responsible
devel opnent of Al askan | and.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE clarified that any |easehold sales would
be perm ssive and considered on a case-by-case basis.

2:46: 23 PM
SENATOR PASKVAN | oi ned the neeti ng.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 5- April 13, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE told the commttee that ARRC Board Chair,
John Binkley, has taken a |eadership role in acknow edgi ng that
there have been problens in the way the railroad has dealt with
cormunities and |essees. HB 357 would help to keep the
conversation going, he said. In conclusion he restated that the
bill Is permssive and provides opportunities that don't
currently exist.

2:49: 34 PM
SENATOR MENARD asked if the current |easeholders would receive
priority if the railroad decided to sell its |and.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE replied the bill specifies that current
| easehol ders would have first right of refusal, but it's a
policy issue that is debatabl e.

SENATOR MENARD said she is torn because, although the | essees
have a stake, it makes good business sense for the land to go to
t he hi ghest bidder.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE replied it's debatable, but he opted to
protect |easeholder's tinme and noney investnents, some of which
go back over 50 to 60 years.

CHAIR KOOKESH asked if this sinply adds a fourth option
governing how the railroad nmay di spose of its |and.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE confirnmed that the bill was witten to
reflect that intent.

2:52:06 PM
SENATOR PASKVAN said he understands that the bill was witten to
give current | easeholders the right to match the hi ghest bid.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE responded that he believes it was witten
t hat way.

SENATOR PASKVAN expressed concern about wunduly delaying the
transaction and asked if there would be a [imt on the tinme the
| easehol der woul d have to neet the high bid.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said he believes that would be up to the
rail road, but he believes ARRC would act in good faith.

SENATOR PASKVAN said he tends to agree with the sponsor. It

would be in ARRC s best economic interest to act in good faith
in these transactions.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 6- April 13, 2010



2:55:18 PM

SENATOR MENARD asked if the railroad would argue for the status
guo since it gets eight percent annual return fromits |eased
| and.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE clarified that the proceeds would stay
with the railroad and he believes ARRC could nake an eight
percent return on its noney. The agency is unencunbered and
out side the Executive Act, and in sone instances it should | ower
interest rates to help certain small communities. 1It's not
al wvays about maki ng the nost on every dollar, he said.

SENATOR MENARD conpl enented Representative Stoltze for his due
di li gence.

2:58: 15 PM
SENATOR MEYER asked himto el aborate on what woul d happen to the
proceeds fromthe sale of the |and.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said this legislation clarifies that the
proceeds stay wth the railroad and could only be spent in
increments as interest accrues.

SENATOR MEYER asked if he's heard that the passage of this bil
could inpact the railroad' s bond rating.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said he hasn't heard that and isn't sure
how a permissive activity that may not happen could affect the
rating. It begs the question of why sonme people are working so
hard to kill the bill, he added.

3:01: 09 PM
CHAIR KOOKESH asked if this bill could force the railroad to
sell | and.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said no; it's a gentle nudge.

CHAI R KOOKESH observed that the railroad's concern seens to
hi nge on the |anguage that says the noney in the account may be
appropri at ed.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE expl ai ned that an anendnent in the House
Transportation Conmmttee substituted the word "use" for
"appropriated" but legislative legal said that to conply wth 45
U S C 1207(a) (5)Alaska Railroad Transfer Act of 1982),
"appropriated” was the right |anguage.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -7- April 13, 2010



CHAIR KOOKESH asked for clarification that the [|anguage was
changed on the advice of legislative |legal counsel; there was no
intention to do harm

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said that's correct.

3:03:12 PM

VEENDY LINDSKOOG, Vice President of Corporate Affairs, Al aska
Rai | road Corporation, thanked the sponsor for introducing HB 357
and bringing to light some of the frustrations that |easehol ders
have had with ARRC. She assured the conmittee that ARRC is
di scussing ways to address those concerns and is working to
i nprove custoner relations with its |easeholders. Real estate
revenues are the bread and butter of the railroad and a vita
part of what has made ARRC a successful operating entity. The
nodel that allows ARRC to lease land is excellent and worth
protecting, she said.

M5. LINDSKOOG said that it has never been the railroad's
practice to sell land and there is concern that this bill wll
create an expectation that that practice may change. This may
further frustrate custoners, she said. M. Lindskoog referenced
a letter to legislators from John Binkley articulating those
concerns. She said she appreciates that Representative Stoltze
clarified that his intent is not to mandate |and sal es because
the board wouldn't necessarily take that path if this bill were
to pass.

M5. LINDSKOOG informed the committee that the concern that was
rai sed by ARRC s bond counsel centered on the word
"appropriate.” She noted that Bill O Leary, acting CEO and CFQ,
could answer questions in regard to that potential problem In
conclusion she said, "W do understand this doesn't require the
railroad to sell land, it is permssive at this point."

3:07:59 PM

CHAI R KOOKESH asked if she would greatly object if the commttee
passed the bill as currently drafted. There is no requirenent;
the bill sinply provides the railroad a fourth option for
di sposi ng of | and.

M5. LINDSKOOG replied they could live with it because the bil
is perm ssive and does not require action.

SENATOR PASKVAN noted that the last sentence of the bill
contains the word "appropriated" and a reference to federal |aw

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 8- April 13, 2010



and asked if conpliance to that federal law is conpul sory for
ARRC.

MS. LI NDSKOOG declined to answer a |egal question and referenced
a legal nmenmo from the ARRC s general counsel that strongly
recommended substituting another term for "appropriated" in the
| egislation. The terms "retained and managed” [and "used"] were
suggested as viable alternatives. "Maybe it's just one of those
i nstances where our legal team at the railroad has a little bit
different take on the issue than the legislative legal team"™
she added.

SENATOR PASKVAN pointed out that any |anguage the state m ght
use would be preenpted if 45 U S C 1207(a)(5)is compul sory on
t he railroad.

3:10:31 PM

JEFFREY DAVIES, President, American Federation of Governnent
Enpl oyees, Al aska Railroad Wrkers Local 183, said he represents
350 enployees who are concerned about the effect that HB 357
m ght have on the railroad's ability to continue as a self-
sufficient operation. In 2009 ARRC had to lay off many needed
positions in response to rising operational costs and wthout
real estate revenue to offset operational shortfalls the inpact
could have been greater, he said. The enployees he represents
believe these are necessary assets that continue to serve as
i ntended. The nobdel works; changing it could create uncertainty
or lessen job stability and reduce the benefits that Al askan
j obs provide, he said.

3:13: 07 PM

JOHN COOK, Board of Directors, Al aska Railroad Corporation, said
he has a background in real estate devel opnent. He thanked the
sponsor for introducing the bill and said it's brought to |ight
some conmuni cati on problens that ARRC has with the | easehol ders.
He's new to the board and wel comes discussion, but he does have
certain concerns about the unintended consequences of this bill.
The first relates to the right of first refusal because it wll
have the overall affect of depressing market rates.

The second concern is that developers would potentially |ease
pi eces of property and then attenpt to purchase and subdivide
that property. That may be the property's highest and best use,
but just that one person would garner the profit instead of all
Al aska residents. He said he can also see situations where the
| essee would ask to purchase the property under the right of

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 9- April 13, 2010



first refusal and have a preexisting agreenent to sell to the
devel oper for a profit when the title vests.

3:16: 56 PM

PETER MACKSEY, Custoner Rel ations, Steelfab, stated support for
HB 357. He related that this fam|ly-owned business has been on
the sanme ten-acre site for about 60 years. They pay taxes on the
property, which would be tax free if the railroad didn't |ease
it. He noted that |ess than one percent of the land in Alaska is
in private hands and he thinks that this is a chance to allow a
viable business to expand. He expressed the view that the
railroad seens to act like a state agency when it suits them and
a private conpany when it doesn't. HB 357 doesn't push the
railroad into selling its | easehold land, it offers the option.

3:19: 57 PM

CARL ANDERSON, Omer, Cook Inlet Tug and Barge, said the conpany
has been in the famly since 1938. He is concerned that the
railroad is in the transportation business, but when tinmes are
tough it can apply for subsidies or stimulus funds or raise
rates. These options aren't available to other transportation
conpani es, he said.

3:21:28 PM

MARK STEARNS, Alaskan Wod WMlding, said he has been a
| easehol der since 2001 and in that tinme his effective costs have
increased from about $10,000 per year to $42,000 per year.
Leasehol ders have no recourse when the railroad decides to |evy
increases. HB 357 would provide sone certainty and make it
reasonable to make further investnments in their buildings. Unti
recently his conpany was told that extending the |ease wasn't
possi bl e, which hindered any desire to nmake inprovenents and the
ability to get bank l|loans. He described the bill as a win-wn
for the railroad and its | easehol ders.

3:25:01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE reiterated that the bill is perm ssive.
It's spurred by a desire to be responsive to the mpjority of
Al askans who aren't involved with the rail road.

CHAI R KOOKESH cl osed public testinony and asked the will of the
comm ttee.

SENATOR MENARD noved to report HB 357 from committee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and attached fiscal note(s).

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -10- April 13, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE commented that it's puzzling that the
railroad submitted an indetermnate fiscal note given that it
isn't under the Executive Budget Act. The result is that it has
a finance commttee referral

3:27:58 PM

SENATOR MEYER objected to state that he too is puzzled by the
fiscal note. He suggested that to avoid a finance referral the
commttee could zero out the indetermnate part of the fiscal
not e.

CHAI R KOOKESH opposed t he suggesti on.
SENATOR MEYER renoved hi s objection.
CHAI R KOOKESH announced that w thout further objection, CSHB
357(FI'N) nmoved from the Senate Transportation  Standing

Commi tt ee.

HIR 42- CONST. AM TRANSPORTATI ON FUND

CHAI R KOOKESH announced consideration of HIR 42. [CSHIR 42(JUD)
was before the conmttee.]

3:30: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PEGGY W LSON, sponsor of HIR 42, said the Al aska
Transportation Infrastructure Fund (ATIF) requires three pieces
of legislation to put it into practice. HIR 42 is the first
piece. It will put a constitutional anendnment before the voters
to allow a dedicated transportation fund. The enabling
| egi slation, which will be taken up later, defines how the fund
will be used and how the appropriations will be disbursed. The
third piece is to appropriate seed noney into the fund.

In FY10 Al aska received 87 percent of its transportation funding
from the federal governnent, which is nore per capita than any
other state. This is not Ilikely to continue under the new
federal highway authorization bill, she said. In any event,
state-funded projects that neet the same construction standards
can be done faster and cheaper because state requirenents are
| ess stringent.

REPRESENTATI VE PEGGY WLSON told the committee that during the
interim the House transportation commttee net and |ooked at
ways to inprove the transportation infrastructure in this
geographically diverse state. This involved travel to villages
and urban areas to |look at transportation challenges, safety

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -11- April 13, 2010



corridors, congested areas, and roads in need of repair. The
committee also heard from the Al aska Minicipal League and the
Mat - Su Borough about jointly contracting an independent study on
the fiscal challenges associated with transportation. She noted
that Larry Persily also conpleted a study on the fiscal options
for funding infrastructure upgrades. Day-long hearings were held
to highlight issues and pose potential sol utions.

3:34:09 PM

REPRESENTATIVE W LSON rem nded t he comittee t hat t he
constitution grandfathered in two transportation funds: one for
roads and one for water and harbors. She said she believes that
it's time to reinstate a dedicated transportation fund to
address the state's transportation needs. Wth a dedicated fund

it will be clear exactly what funds are available from year-to-
year for <capital projects and major maintenance. For these
reasons | think the voters will vote to reinstate a dedicated

fund for transportation, she said.

CHAI R KOOKESH asked for a notion to adopt the proposed conmttee
substitute (CS)

SENATOR MEYER noved to adopt the work draft Senate CS for CS for
HIR 42, |abeled 26-LS1411\T, as the working docunment. There
bei ng no objection, version T was before the conmttee.

REBECCA ROONEY, staff to Representative Peggy WIson, explained

three changes between the bill versions, one of which is
substantive. The current version T has a small |anguage change
begi nning on page 1, line 15, to clarify that the revenue would

go into the fund after July 1, 2011 even though the enabling
legislation isn't as yet follow ng.

On page 2, line 1, the phrase "provided by law' is in a
different position in the sentence to clarify that it applies
just to the special registration fees provided by |aw and not
all registration fees provided by | aw

The substantive change occurs on page 2, lines 4-5 and relates
to the annual appropriation to the fund. The version that passed
the House said, ".the legislature may appropriate a percentage
of the average market value of the fund" each year. The Senate
CS says, ".the legislature may appropriate a percentage of the
state fuel taxes and registration fees received by the fund in
that year and a percentage of the average market value of the
fund..”.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -12- April 13, 2010



M5. ROONEY directed attention to a spreadsheet in the packet
showing two scenarios. Scenario 1 shows a $1 billion initial
appropriation, the annual appropriations, and the revenues
realized from the vehicle registration fees and the notor fuel
tax. Scenario 2 shows what happens if you allow for expenditures
of 50 percent of those fuel taxes and vehicle registration fees
each year. This denonstrates the inportance of appropriating
nore up front, she said.

3:40: 23 PM

SENATOR PASKVAN expressed a desire to see a table show ng just
the revenue coming fromthe fees. He said he wonders what policy
concerns mght arise out of allocating $1 billion that can't be
t ouched.

M5. RAINEY said she would provide that information.

3:41:48 PM
SENATOR MEYER asked what would happen to the appropriation if
the fuel tax was repealed as it was two years ago.

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON said in that event just the vehicle
registration fees would be appropriated. But for this to really
work, it's inmportant to seed the fund initially, she added.

SENATOR MEYER said he supports the bill, but he worries that
that there m ght be pressure on the Legislature to increase the
fuel tax in order to get nore noney into the fund.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON said a future Legislature my |ook at
that, but the federal governnment wll be providing |ess revenue
for transportation in the future so it's inportant to start
planning for that. This is the best way we could think of to
start that process, she said.

3:45: 31 PM

MARK HI CKEY, representing hinself, stated that he is a forner
commi ssioner of transportation and he strongly supports HIR 42.
He related that he has worked on this nmeasure in one form or
another since the md '80s. He agreed with the sponsor that
Al aska had this dedicated fund at statehood; but when the fuel
tax was raised in the '60s the Departnent of Law (DOL) advised
that changing the rate of taxation did away with the dedication.
Based on that advice, the acconpanying statute that said that
these funds shall be used for highway and harbor purposes was
anended to say that the funds may be used for those purposes.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -13- April 13, 2010



MR. HI CKEY said that since that tinme DOL's advice has been shown

to be incorrect. In fact, in the md 90s the tobacco tax was
increased in the dedicated school fund and that has never been
challenged. It's clear that the constitution framers did not

intend for there to be a need for this neasure and it's also
clear that the Legislature in 1960 didn't intend as a policy to
elimnate the dedication, he said. That Legislature thought it
had no choi ce.

MR. HI CKEY said changing the constitution to allow a dedicated
fund isn't done lightly. To his know edge the permanent fund is
the only one that's been established since statehood. He said
that it's been shown that for transportation there are strong
argunments in favor of doing this. There is a strong
understanding in the public that these are user fees and that as
needs increase there my be a need to do sonething different
with user fees. In the '90s there was a proposal to increase the
fuel tax and the polling showed that over 70 percent of Al askans
supported an increase if the funds were dedicated. They did not
support the increase w thout an assurance that the funds would
be used for transportation purposes.

MR. HI CKEY noted that Alaska is the only state that doesn't have
a state-funded transportation program HIR 42 provides that
ability. This would be nost helpful to small rural projects and
woul d keep federal dollars for |arger projects.

Responding to questions raised earlier, he said it's inportant
to understand that the fuel tax was suspended and not
elimnated. The record from the Constitutional Conventi on
indicates that if this neasure passes and then the Legislature
elimnated the tax, the dedication would be lost. "I think it's
clear from the record that a suspension probably wouldn't do
that," he said. Referring to Senator Meyer's question he said he
believes that the public would support a fuel tax increase if
the funds were dedi cat ed.

3:51:57 PM
SH RLEY MARQUARDT, Mayor , Cty of Unal aska; Second Vice
Pr esi dent , Al aska  Muni ci pal | eague (AM); and board of

directors, Southwest Alaska Minicipal Conference, said the
conference passed a resolution in support of this type of stable
funding for the infrastructure needs across the state. AM. has
made this a top priority for several years. She related that the
Cty of Unalaska has a five-year capital budget plan and if
funding opportunities for projects are up in the air, it is
extrenely risky and potentially expensive to go through the

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -14- April 13, 2010



permtting and design process. In the past the city have spent
over $1 million on design for roads and then not received
fundi ng, she said.

3:53:43 PM

KATHY WASSERVAN, Al aska Muinicipal League (AML), inforned the
commttee about of the caliber of persons who were involved in
the study that the sponsor nentioned. They had two prior
commi ssioners of transportation on the study, which was funded
by AM., the Minicipality of Anchorage, WMt-Su Borough, the
Al aska Truckers Association, and the Al aska General Contractors,
she said. This is an issue that has been under work for many
years and the people who conducted the study were know edgeabl e.
Everyone who has been involved with these organizations has
spent time in Washington D.C. and could see the witing on the
wall a couple of years ago that Alaska is in deep trouble and
will be one of the states that suffers mghtily.

3:55: 04 PM

LOS EPSTIEN, Alaska I|icensed engineer and Director, Al aska
Transportation Priorities Project (ATPP), said ATPP works with a
wi de variety of organizations to pronote sensible transportation
policies in Alaska. ATTP supports addressing the wupcom ng
decline in federal transportation noney by creating a
transportation infrastructure fund. However, the |anguage in HIR
42 could mslead the public into thinking that only capital
projects would be covered by the fund. ATPP supports this
legislation if the language is anended to clarify that noney
fromthe fund could be used for nmjor maintenance projects, she
concl uded.

3:56: 53 PM

DAVID LEVY, Executive Director, Alaska Mbility Coalition
stated support for HIR 42. He said the nobility coalition is a
private nonprofit that advocates for public and community
transportation statewi de. He echoed the comments of Mark Hi ckey
and described HIR 42 as a creative way to deal with capital and
mai nt enance transportation chal | enges statew de.

3:58: 27 PM

JOHN MACKI NNON, Executive Di rector, Associ at ed Cenera
Contractors of Alaska (AGCA), said AGCA, which represents over
650 Al aska businesses, supports HIR 42. This would put a
constitutional anmendnent question before the voters to provide
dedi cated revenue for a transportation infrastructure fund. This
has been a priority of the AGCA for many years, he said. The
proposed fund would enconpass all nodes of transportation

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 15- April 13, 2010



infrastructure, including naintenance. The collection of fuel
taxes and vehicle registration fees directed into the fund is
comensurate to a user-fee concept. The public understands and
can support user fees as opposed to general taxation going into
a general fund. He restated support for the legislation as well
as the anended | anguage in the commttee substitute.

3:59: 54 PM

DAVE CRUZ, President, Associated CGeneral Contractors of Al aska
stated full support for HIR 42 as a step in the right direction
for Alaska to take control of its destiny.

4:00: 27 PM

SENATOR PASKVAN asked his thoughts on the suggestion to anend
the | anguage to include maintenance as opposed to just capita
proj ect s.

MR. CRUZ expressed the view that maintenance should be included
as opposed to building a road with state funds and then trying
to get federal funds to maintain it.

SENATOR MENARD noted that the suggestion was for "ngjor
mai nt enance” and asked if there is a specific dollar anmount over
whi ch a nmai ntenance project beconmes a maj or mai ntenance project.

4:01: 34 PM
MR. CRUZ declined to state a threshold w thout consulting with
menbers.

4:02:13 PM

FRANK Rl CHARDS, Deputy Comm ssi oner, Depar t ment of
Transportation and Public Facilities (DOIPF) explained that
DOTPF is routinely funded for major maintenance activities under
the capital program This includes deferred naintenance and
maj or bridge maintenance. Regul ar naintenance efforts are
undertaken under annual operating costs. He stated the belief
that it was the intent of the sponsor that HIR 42 would
establish an infrastructure fund for capital projects that would
include major reconstructions, major rehabilitation, and other
maj or mai ntenance efforts.

SENATOR MENARD asked what would be included in a mnor
nmai nt enance proj ect.

MR. RICHARDS replied those would be the things that are done on

an annual basis including sweeping streets, sealing cracks, and
changi ng streetlight bul bs.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -16- April 13, 2010



4:03:47 PM
SENATOR PASKVAN said if he would support anending the |anguage
to specifically include major naintenance.

MR. RICHARDS said he believes that it's a policy call by the
Legislature that in the regular annual appropriations DOIPF
normal ly receives capital project funds for nmajor maintenance
The current |anguage is sufficient.

CHAIR KOOKESH sunmarized that M. Richards believes that the
phrase "capital projects" on page 2, line 6, would include mjor
mai nt enance. He asked Representative Peggy WIlson to conment.

REPRESENTATI VE PEGGY WLSON stated her belief that the current
| anguage is sufficient to include major maintenance, but she
woul dn't object to inserting "major maintenance" on page 2, line
6, following "transportation". If it would reassure the voters
it mght be a good idea, she said.

CHAI R KOOKESH said, based on the testinmony from DOIPF, he is
satisfied with the current |anguage.

SENATOR PASKVAN concurr ed.

CHAI R KOOKESH cl osed public testinony and asked the will of the
conmittee.

4:07:26 PM

SENATOR PASKVAN noved to report Senate CS for CS for HIR 42
version T, from commttee with individual recomendations and
attached fiscal note(s). There being no objection, SCS CSHIR
42(TRA) noved fromthe Senate Transportation Standing Comm ttee.

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Chair Kookesh adjourned the neeting at 4:07 p. m

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -17- April 13, 2010



